Public Document Pack

Havering

ALTBERTYR LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
VERTIGO LOUNGE, 17-19 STATION LANE,

HORNCHURCH
AGENDA
oman S,

Members 3: Quorum 2
COUNCILLORS:

Peter Gardner (Chairman)
Robert Benham
Frederick Thompson

For information about the meeting please contact:
James Goodwin (01708) 432432
james.goodwin@havering.gov.uk




Licensing Sub-Committee, 29 March 2012

AGENDA ITEMS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members are invited to declare any interest in any of the item on the agenda at this
point of the meeting. Members may still declare an interest in an item at any time prior
to the consideration of the matter.

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

4  REPORT OF THE CLERK (Pages 1 - 8)
5  REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER (Pages 9 - 78)

Application for a variation of a premises licence for Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station
Lane, Hornchurch, RM12 6JL.

lan Buckmaster
Committee Administration & Member Support
Manager



Agenda Iltem 4

»¢ Havering

e LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

29 March 2012

Subject Heading: Procedure for the Hearing:
Licensing Act 2003

Report Author and contact details: James Goodwin — Committee Officer
01708 432432
james.qgoodwin@havering.qov.uk

Members are advised that, when considering an application to vary a
premises licence, the following options are available to them by virtue of the
Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, section 35, paragraphs 3 and 4.

"Where relevant representations are made, the authority must

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant
and each person who has made such representations agree that a
hearing is unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such steps as it
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps are:
a) modify the conditions of the licence
b) reject the whole or part of the application

and for this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of
them is altered or omitted or any new condition is added."

The Sub-Committee will also wish to note that, if none of these steps is
required, the application must be granted.

Assuming that the Sub-Committee is satisfied that a hearing is required, then
the following procedural steps are recommended. The Licensing Act 2003
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 will govern the arrangements for the hearing of
the application now under consideration. This report accords with the
requirements of that Act and the Regulations, and in particular Regulations
21-25 (procedure at the hearing).

Page 1



Licensing Sub-Committee: 29 March 2012

1. Membership of the Sub-Committee:

1.1

1.2

The Sub-Committee comprises three members of the Licensing
Committee, with a quorum of two members. Unless there are
objections, in the absence of three members, the hearing shall
proceed with the quorum of two.

A members of the Licensing Committee will be excluded from hearing

an application where he or she:

1.2.1 has considered an application in respect of the premises in the
previous 12 months as a Member of the Regulatory Services
Committee; or

1.2.2 is a Ward Councillor for the Ward in which the premises, subject
to the application, are located; or

1.2.3 is a Ward Councillor for a Ward which is likely to be affected by
the application or;

1.2.4 has a personal interest in the application.

2. Roles of other participants:

2.1

2.2

The Legal Advisor is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Legal
Advisor is to provide legal advice relating to the application and
submissions.

The Clerk is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Clerk is to record
the hearing and the decisions of the Sub-Committee, and ensure
efficient administration

3. Representation validation meeting:

3.1

3.2

Prior to this hearing, the Sub-Committee Chairman will have met the
Legal Advisor and/or Clerk to determine whether further clarification is
required of any issues contained in the application or any
representation.

During this preliminary meeting no decision will have been made or
discussion held regarding the substantive merits of the application or
representations.

4. Location and facilities:

41

4.2

All hearings will be heard at the Havering Town Hall unless otherwise
directed.

Interpreters will be provided by the Council on request, provided notice
is given at least five working days before the hearing.

Page 2



Licensing Sub-Committee: 29 March 2012

5. Notification of attendance:

5.1

The Chairman will enquire of the parties who is in attendance and the
parties will indicate their names (and, where relevant, whom they
represent). A register will be circulated before the commencement of
the hearing on which the applicant, his/her advisers and companions
and all interested parties (and/or their representatives) will be asked to
record their attendance.

6. Procedural matters:

6.1

6.2

Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will orally inform the parties whether their applications to
have certain people attend the hearing (e.g. witnesses) have been
granted or refused. Note this relates to people other than those
attending on behalf of a party in the capacity as a representative of the

party.

Prior to the commencement of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing. This
will normally be as follows:

Introduction of the application:

The Licensing officer will outline:

e details of the application and relevant representations received from
the parties;

¢ relevant legislation ;

¢ relevant Licensing Policy; and

e the time limit in which the Council must reach a determination.

Documentary evidence:

e Documentary or other information in support of applications,
representations or notices should be provided to the Clerk of the
Sub-Committee at least 5 clear working days before the hearing. If
this information is produced at the hearing it will only be taken into
account by the Sub-Committee if the Sub-Committee and all the
parties consent to its submission. Permission to have this
information included in the hearing should be requested at the
beginning of the hearing before any oral submissions have been
made.

e Statements made by people in support of a party’s representation
who are not present at the hearing, must be signed by the maker,
dated and witnessed by another person. The statement must also
contain the witness’s full name and occupation.

Page 3



Licensing Sub-Committee: 29 March 2012

Representations:

e The chairman will invite each of the parties at the hearing or their
representative sequentially to address the Sub-Committee and call
any person/s to whom permission has been granted to appear.
Each party will be allowed a maximum period of 10 minutes in
which to address the Sub-Committee and call persons on his/her
behalf.

e This 10 minute period is where each party has the opportunity to
orally address the Sub-Committee and clarify any points in which
the Sub-Committee has sought clarification prior to the hearing.
This 10 minute period should be uninterrupted unless a member of
the Sub-Committee or Legal Advisor considers that the speaker is
making submissions that are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious.

e Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of any party, at
any time during the proceedings. Time taken in dealing with a
Member’s question will not be taken into account in determining the
length of time available to the party in question to make their
representation.

The sequence in which each of the parties will be invited to address the

Sub-Committee will normally be in the order of:
e the Chief Officer of Police;

the Fire Authority;

the Health and Safety at Work Enforcing Authority;

the Local Planning Authority;

the Local environmental Health Authority;

the Local Weights and Measures Authority;

the Authority Responsible for the Protection of Children from

Harm;

a navigation or other authority responsible for waterways; and

e any other party that has submitted representations in respect of
the application, certificate, notice or other matter appearing
before the Sub-Committee;

o the party that has submitted the application, certificate, notice or
other matter appearing before the Sub-Committee.

At the discretion of the Sub-Committee the above order may be varied.
Cross-Examination:

Where witnesses have been permitted by the Sub-Committee to speak
at the hearing on behalf of a party, permission must be sought from the
Sub-Committee before another party can ask the witness questions.
This process of questioning is normally referred to as cross-
examination. The Sub-Committee will allow cross-examination only

Page 4



Licensing Sub-Committee: 29 March 2012

where it is necessary to assist it in considering the representations or
application.

Relevance:

Information submitted at the hearing must be relevant to the
applications, representations, or notice and the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The Chairman of the Sub-Committee is entitled to
exclude any information it considers to be irrelevant whether presented
in written or oral form. The licensing objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and
The protection of children from harm.

7. Failure of parties to attend the hearing:

71

If a party, who has not given prior notice of his/her intention not to
attend the hearing, is absent from the hearing the Sub-Committee may
either adjourn the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence.
Where the hearing is held in the absence of a party, the Sub-
Committee will still consider the application, representation or notice
submitted by that party.

8. Adjournments and extension of time:

8.1

The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or
extend a notice period except where it must make a determination
within certain time limits in the following specific applications:

e Applications for conversion of existing licences where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the
application first being received. In default of a decision being made
the application will be treated as being granted;

e Applications for variation of existing licences where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the
application first being received. In default of a decision being made
the application will be treated as being rejected;

e Applications for conversion of existing club certificates where the
Sub-Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the
application being first received. In default of a decision being made
the application will be treated as being granted;

Page 5



Licensing Sub-Committee: 29 March 2012

e Applications for variation of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the
application being first received. In default of a decision being made
the application will be treated as being rejected;

e Applications made by holders of justices’ licences for personal
licences must be determined within 3 months of the application first
being received. In default of a decision not being made within this
period the application will be treated as being granted;

e Review of premises licences following closure orders where the
Sub-committee must make a determination within 28 days of
receiving notice of the closure order.

9. Sub-Committee’s determination of the hearing:

9.1 At the conclusion of the hearing the Sub-Committee will deliberate in
private accompanied by the Clerk and the Legal Advisor who will be
available to assist the Sub-Committee with any legal problems but will
not participate in any decision making of the Sub-Committee.

9.2 The Sub-Committee will normally make its determination and
announce its decision at the end of the hearing.

9.3  Where all parties have notified the Sub-Committee that a hearing is not
required the Sub-Committee must make its determination within 10
working days of being given notice that the hearing is not required.

10.Power to exclude people from hearing:

10.1 The public are entitled to attend the hearing as spectators. However,
the Sub-Committee may exclude any person from the hearing including
any person assisting or representing a party where:

e it considers that the public interest would be best served by
excluding the public or the individual person from the hearing; or

e that person is behaving in a disruptive manner. This may include a
party who is seeking to be heard at the hearing. In the case where a
party is to be excluded, the party may submit to the Sub-Committee
in writing any information which they would have been entitled to
give orally had they not been required to leave the hearing.

11.Recording of proceedings:

11.1 A written record of the hearing will be produced and kept for 6 years
from the date of the determination of the hearing.

Page 6



Licensing Sub-Committee: 29 March 2012

12.Power to vary procedure:
12.1 The Sub-committee may depart from following any of the procedures

set out in this document if it considers the departure to be necessary in
order to consider an application, notice or representation.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

Licensing Sub-Committee

Section 1 Licensing Officer's Report

Appendix 1  Copy of application

Appendix2 Copy of Premises Licence

Appendix 3  Map of Local Area

Appendix4 Representations from Responsible
Authorities

Appendix 5 Representations

Page 9



Page 10



Licensing Sub-Committee

Section 1 - Licensing Officer’s report

Page 11



Page 12



Havering

Awiit:. LONDON BOROUGH

S

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

29" March 2012

Subject heading: Vertigo Lounge

17-19 Station Lane Hornchurch
RM12 6JL

Premises licence variation
Report author and contact details: Paul Jones, Licensing Officer
5" floor Mercury House

X 2692

This application for a variation to a premises licence is made by Thornbury
Solutions Ltd under section 34 of the Licensin% Act 2003. The application was
received by Havering’s Licensing Authority on 7" February 2012.

Geographical description of the area and description of the building

Vertigo Lounge is located in Hornchurch’s town centre. During the day this premises
provides dining facilities while during the evening the provision of food ends and the
premises becomes a bar for vertical drinking and attendant activities. Hornchurch town
centre contains a mixture of commercial and residential properties. A map of the area is
attached.

Details of the application

Current premises licence hours:

Recorded music

Day Start | Finish
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 | 23:00
Friday & Saturday 10:00 | 00:00
Supply of alcohol (on & off premises)

Day Start Finish
Sunday to Thursday 12:00 | 23:00
Friday & Saturday 12:00 | 00:00

Page 13



Licensing Sub-Committee, 29 March 2012

Variation applied for:

Films, live music, performances of dance,
anything similar to live music, recorded musid
or performances of dance, provision of
facilities for making music, dancing or
anything similar, supply of alcohol

Day Start | Finish
Sunday to Thursday 12:00 | 23:00
Friday & Saturday 12:00 | 01:00
Recorded music

Day Start | Finish
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 | 23:00
Friday & Saturday 10:00 | 01:00
Hours premises open to the public

Day Start | Finish
Monday to Thursday 12:00 | 23:30
Friday to Saturday 12:00 | 01:30
Sunday 12:00 | 00:00

The applicant has applied to vary the New Year's Eve hours for all licensable activities
to the effect that licensable activity may be provided from the end of the normal
licensable hours on New Year's Eve to the beginning of licensable hours on New Year's
Day.

The application also seeks to vary the layout of the premises. Currently the premises
plans indicate that there is a bar on the ground floor only. A second bar has been
installed on the first floor and thus this application is in part to amend the licence in
accordance with the extant premises layout.

Finally, the application seeks to remove and/or amend certain conditions on the current
licence. The application seeks to remove 49 conditions; 45 of these conditions are from
Annex 2 of the licence while the remaining 4 conditions are from Annex 3. Annex 2
contains conditions volunteered by the applicant when the original application for the
licence was made while Annex 3 contains conditions imposed by the Licensing Sub-
Committee previously.

The conditions seeking to be removed are as follows:

Annex2 -~ 2,6,7, 11,13, 15, 20, 22, 26, 27, 28, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 42, 43, 44,
48, 50, 62, 66, 69, 70, 77, 78, 80, 83, 88, 89, 92, 93, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103,
104, 105, 106, 107, 111

Annex 3 - 115, 116, 137, 143

Page 14



Licensing Sub-Committee, 29 March 2012

Certain conditions seek to be removed and replaced or amended. These are:

Remove condition 16 and replace with:
The last entry time for patrons shall be thirty minutes prior to the end of the licensable
activity.

Remove condition 52 and replace with:
Door staff shall use counters at appropriate and busy times and take necessary action
to ensure the maximum capacity numbers are not exceeded.

Remove condition 71 and replace with:
The bi-fold doors and windows at the front of the premises shall be closed by 21:00 on
Fridays and Saturdays.

Remove condition 98 and replace with:
The external lighting to the roof garden shall be in accordance with Health & Safety.

Remove condition 126 and replace with:
The designated premises supervisor shall attend a relevant drugs awareness course
from an accredited body or local authority.

To add the following to the end of condition 125:
Any amendments to the policy shall be approved by Havering Police.

A condition wishes to be added to the licence. This is:
Any drinks promotions shall be at a minimum of £2.00.

Further amendments to the operating schedule were received by the Licensing
Authority after the applicant’s negotiation with the Police. These include modifying two
conditions and adding three further conditions as follows:

Remove condition 117 and replace with:

The maximum number of persons including staff and entertainers allowed at the
premises shall be 260. This shall be split over 3 floors in accordance with LFEPA
advice.

Remove condition 138 and replace with:
Premises which have a policy that includes the searching of persons shall have door
supervisors of both sexes on duty at all times when required.

Add the following conditions:

The venue shall use toughened glass and/or polycarbonate drinking vessels at all times
in all areas. Except after 22:00 the roof terrace shall be reserved for smokers and only
polycarbonate drinking vessels shall be permitted on the terrace.

No person is permitted to enter or exit the venue with any drinking vessel except for off-

sales where the item must be sealed upon sale and not consumed directly in front of the
premises.

Page 15



Licensing Sub-Committee, 29 March 2012

Children under 18 shall not be permitted on the premises after 19:00 daily until the end
of licensable activity unless specified under the children’s policy.

Comments and observations on the application

The applicant acted in accordance with regulations 25 and 26 of The Licensing Act
2003 (Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 relating to
the advertising of the application. The required public notice was installed in the 15"
February 2012 edition of the Yellow Advertiser. The newspaper notice stated that the
application was made under s.34 of ‘The Insolvency Act 2003'. While the
aforementioned regulations govern the form and content of such a notice there is no
explicit requirement to identify the Act under which the application is made, although
one might reasonably expect the appropriate Act to be identified in the notice.

Apart from the provision of recorded music the application seeks to provide all other
licensable activities both indoors and outdoors. The premises contains an open
terraced area on the roof; the assumption therefore is that regulated entertainment
seeks to be provided externally here as well as inside the premises.

Summary
There were nine representations against this application from interested parties.

There were two representations against this application from responsible authorities,
namely the London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority and Havering's Noise
Specialist.

Details of representations

Valid representations may only address the following licensing objectives:

The prevention of crime and disorder
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm
Public safety

Interested parties’ representations

Seven residents from the property adjacent to the premises signed a letter of
representation against this application which was based upon the prevention of public
nuisance licensing objective.

Two further residents of this same residential property submitted a representation via an
agent. The agent also states that he represents the owners of the building although no
evidence to support this has been provided to the Licensing Authority. This
representation is also based upon the prevention of public nuisance licensing objective.

Page 16



Licensing Sub-Committee, 29 March 2012

Responsible authorities’ representations

Inspecting Officer David Hallam makes representation against this application on behalf
of the London Fire & Emergency Planning Authority. 10 Hallam’s representation is
based upon the public safety licensing objective.

Havering’s Noise Specialist Marc Gasson makes representation against this application.
Mr Gasson'’s representation is based upon the prevention of public nuisance licensing
objective.

There were no representations from any other responsible authority.

Paul Jones
Licensing Officer
London Borough of Havering

Page 17



Page 18



TO ADVERTISE TELEPHONE BASILDON (01268) 503400

VellowGlassified

SYHAV

www.yellowadvertiser-today.co.uk

Havering Yellow Advertiser, Wednesday, February 15, 2012 49

www.yellowadvertiser-today.co.uk

05 jer

w_0o

Selling something?
BEARGAIN ADS UNDER £100
Call 0905 624 0595

Lty et 1LY 10 3 41 Lywgies. Sowe 9 3 P Ll
= e umqllnwu'a*mn—unm
Ereby wmad €190 phis lw- el did

3 1PLE EL o
it w et 1R

BARGAIN ADS OVER £100

Call 01268 503 400
Minimum charge £9.00 » &8,008m-5.00pm

Fri day 9.00-5.00

Recruitment: 01268 503 420
Classified: 01268 503 430
Monday-Thursday 9.00-5.30

Calls may be monitored

Yellow Advertisar
Acorn House

Great Oaks, Basildon,
Essex S814 1AH

01268 503 418
01268 503 419
01268 503 455

Business Advertising

Basildon

Pop into our town centre offics)
Monday-Thursday 9.00-5.30
Friday 9.00-5,00

Agorn House, Great Qaks

Public Notices

Articles for
Sale

GOODS VEHICLE OPERATOR'S LICENCE
Steven James Rourke of 45 Hedingham Road,
Chaftord Hundred, Essex RM16 6BH is applying
for a licence to use Bretts Concrete Ltd, Hainault
Road, Little Heath, Romford RM6 3SS as an
operating centre for 1 goods vehicle and 0 trailers.
Owners or occupiers of land (including buildings)

Two 2 Seater
Leather Sofas,
Dark Brown, 2 and
a half years old
As new
£250 each
07787 591934

near the operating centre who believe that their
use or enjoyment of that land would be affected,
should make written representations to the Traffic
Commissioner at South Eastern & Metropolitan
Traffic Area, Applications Services, Hillcrest
House, 386 Harehills Lane, Leeds LS9 &NF,
stating theit reasons within 21 days of this Notice.
Representors must at the same time send a copy of
their representations to the applicant at the
address given at the top of this Notice, A Guide to
Making Representations is available from the
Traffic Commissioner's Office.

GOODS VEHICLE OPERATOR'S LICENCE
D&G Cars Ltd of Recovery House, Upminster
Trd Park, Watley Street, Essex RM14 3PJ is
applying to change an existing licence as follows,

FOOTBALL

To keep an extra 8 goods vehicles and 4 trailers at

Bargain
Buys

PROGRAMMES
WANTED
Locai collector seeks
especially pre 1970
items, Finals,
European, England,
Spuis, Arsenal, West
Ham, Chelsea eic &
whole collections

01245 358660

SOLID PINE CABIN SINGLE
BUNK BED, ladder lefi-hand
side, good condition, £75,
malching desk, £30. GIALS
CLOTHING, 10-13yrs, lops,
trousers, jeans, t-shirs, large
bag, all excsllent condition,
€25, GIALS COAT, NEW, FAUX
CAMEL SUEDE, fur-lined hoad,
never worn, only £10 Tel:
01375 381839

ZANUSSI| WASHING
MACHINE, &mlhs old, selling
due to ldichen relit, €30cnc.

CAR TYRE, 175 x 65 x 13, VW
Palo sleel nm, £10. FOUR
INTERIOR TEAK STAINED
HARDWOOD DOCRHS, need re-
slaining, glazed with fillings,
coliection only, £99. Tel: 01268
750631

CAST IRON BATH, vhite, tra-
dition=1 brass shower mix tap,
€60, WHITE CERAMIC CLOSE
COUFLED  TOILET, €25,
Matching BIDET, £20. DOUBLE
CONVECTOR RADIATOR, while
€15, ARMITAGE SHANKS
WHITE OVAL UNDER HUNG
SINK, wilhin while marble vani-
ly top, €25, Tel: 01702 585300

KINGSIZE MATTRESS, new
£60, GAS COOKER, new, while
and black, Beko, 500 wide x
900 high, double oven, £70
DOUBLE PINE BED, mattress,
excslizat condition, £80, TALL-
BOY FREEZER, ideal garage,
excellent condilion, £60. HALF
SIZE FRIDGE, £40. Te: 07415
324886

F‘UPPV IN MY POCKET,

DESKTOP PC. Compaq Intel
Penlium dual CPU e2140 at
1,60 GHz 500GB hard drve. 2
GB ram, 6 USB points. CO/DVD
burner. Windows vista home
premium. 17" llal screen
Wireless keyboard and mouse
£75. Tel: 07939 524304
(Weslclif)

BUTTERFLY TABLE TENNIS
TABLE, folds up, on wheels for
easy sforage slight damage io
corners but slil good working
order, £700n0. BLACK
LEATHER-LOOK OFFICE
CHAIR, reclines and swivels,
ideal use as gaming chair, €20
Tel: 07736 035959

INDESIT WASHING
MACHINE, good as news, £85.
NEW TWO WHEELED BIICE,
stabilizers. suitable 3-dyrs, £15,
SCOOTER, BARBIE, very clean,
3-4yrs, ES. NEW DOLLS
HOUSE with furniture £7, TOY
HOOVER, Chad Valley, £3. Tel
01268 770964,

SMALL PULLALONG SUIT-
GCASE, immaculate condition,
£80, TWO LARGE SUITCASES,
Iravel wheels, excellent condi-
tion, £15. LINDAM STAIRGATE,
£15. HAIRDAYER, DOMED,
hooded, sit-under, poriable if
needed, goed working ordsr,
£10, Tel: 01277 365605,

ARISTON GAS HOB 39 x
651cm, graphite, four cooking
zones viith wok burner, enamel
supports, electric ignition, front
conlrels, as new, E60ono
BOSCH COOKER HOOD, 59 x

CANON PIXMA MP170
PRINTER and scanner, £20. BT
HOMEHUB2 ROUTER, 2no
£10 each, DELL COMPUTER,
17in screen, speakers, kay+
boand pnd moune, T35, Teh
07676 123742

UNDER WORKTOP FREEZER
in while. Pick up only, £45
BABY WARDAOBE In beech
light waod with bottom dravs
very good condition, £65 Tel:
07931 422300

CAR SEAT, Maxicosi, very
good condilion, £30, HIGH-
CHAIR, very gaod condilion,
£15, TRAVELGOT, HAUCK, very
gaod condilion, €30, Tel: 01702
392822

FISH TANK tank measures,
17%in deep x 18%in high x 18in
wide, lank on stand stands 45in
high, bow front, built-m pump,
lighl, healer, ornamenls, gravel,
£80. Tek: 07582 025256.

OUTBOARD MOTOR wanied,
(unner or non-cunner, Mercury,
Yamaha, ele, 5HP to 100HP.
amihing conaidived. may ke
oompliata boot i WM sischod
Tel* Q1368765086

P4 LAPTOPR,  last, machms,
wireless, ‘inlernet ready, sofl-
ware loaded, DVD/CD copier,
ideal Skype, ebay, facebook,
includes Iree bag, free delivery,
£100. Tel: 01268 766649,

POSTCARDS, approx 150;
1960s onwards, UK and for-
elgn, mainly scenic views, lots

TABLE AND CHAIRS, light
wood, six chairs, extending
table, buyer collects, chairs

FOUR BREAKFAST BAR
STOOLS, white legs, blue
iti-seat, €30ono Tel: 07539

need overing, £25,
Tel: 01708 470873

WORK BOOTS, NEW, Doctor
Marlins, black, Himalayan, tan,
size 9, B15 the pair. CAMERA
BACKPACK BAG, €15. Tel:
01702 618681

69 MARLEY BROWN LUD-
LOW ROOF TILES, 27 slightly
chipped, also 21 toof liles reg
design B96450 €40 ono the lol
Tel: 07866 882506

CURTAINS, PAIR WINE VEL-
VET, fully lined, pinch pleats, fit
121t wide window, length B1ins,
one curtain marked on bottom,
£50. Tel: 01708 451564

DISPLAY CABINET/BOOK-
CASE, mahogany woad, slid-
ing glass doors, four delachable
unils, 5f tall/3(t vide, £35, Tel:
01268 784043,

MENS BLACK SINGLE
BREASTED LEATHER JACK-
ET, 1970s vintage slyle, 42-44,
excelleni condilion, £40ono.
Tel: 01708 727671

ROUND COME OVAL CLAW
LEG TABLE €60 ono, SIDE-
BOARD 3 DRAWS 3 lockable
doars £40 ono can deliver Tel:
07950 935825

SMALL DOG OR CAT SHEL-
TER for sale £25 New RABBIT
HUTCH for sale £45 will deliver
free to the Basildon area Tel:
01268 473365

663178

GIALS REEBOK MOUNTAIN
BIKE, 20in wheels, dual sus-
pension, very good condifron,

£45, Tel: 01268 755719.

MALIBU PILATES EXERCISE
CHAIR, brand new, three DVDs =
and Instructions, £500no. Tel: JJ
01277 658188,

7FT SNOOKER TABLE, cues,
triangle, some balls, £70ono

Tel: 020 3536 8222
BIORB FISH TANK
accessories, £50ono
01268 774462
COMPUTER UNIT wilh some
shelving / swivel office chair €20
for both Tel: 01708 453293
CONTIMOBILITY KIT, road-
side punctures solved, unused,
£25, Tel: 01268 781634.

plus
Tel:

DISPLAY CABINET, tall, black
with two glass doors, as new,
£500no, Tel: 01268 479519,

FUTON SOFA BED, pine, .
tevarsible black/chercaal mat-
tress E75 ono Tel: 7775 635175

GAS COOKER WHITE free
standing belling never been
used £60 Tel: 07948 722793
GUITAR,  ciassical, lovely
sound, cost £100, asking £30

Tel: 020 8504 5840

RABBIT HUTCH, two tier, light
brown teak colour, £40, Tel:

§ I my O1cT.Drown. new. £600no. Tet  Brook Bond tea cards, no com- BIGS:’J_H DIGSOHWASH‘:ER frhef 01708 451168,
: 7923 502415 ote. set~ €20 Tel: 01268 Slanding 60cm wide, white '
the opdlating contielat Recovery House, Warley TWO BRITTAX Gosy ToT Pooketbrena. plus iots pogpses B -5' e e excellenl conditian, €95 ono XROCKER GAMING CHAIR
Street, Upmunster, Essex RM 14 3P]. CAR SEATS, excellent condi-  Wid ponins, absofutsly prstinn. . BOVS BIKE, detachabie gtits- Tel: 07990 946944 black, exe cond, hardly used,
oty °N 5 3 £20 DOLLS.BW\CCM Newrs, tod, w3 SR AR i feal £40. Tel: 01
Owners or occupiers of land (including fon £26 each, MAMAS & = i Ir " o, extenor COAL EFFECT FIRE up lo 3kyy - 0- 16l 01268 750424, =
B pAPAS, Zeddy and Rhubarb DG “L [ s Gric. exterior 5
a3 i e : SrovD et ] 5 T e > black, with nstructions 150- 3ft  10MP FINEPIX FUJI FILM &
build h ho bel less than 3 it
uildings) near the operating centre who believe nursery set, two cot bumpers, oL is. very Silont night devan and matires CAMERA, pink, nearly new,
> ; (0o pe's. var i : , \ .
that their use or enjoyment of that land would be ﬁ%;lﬂ‘s Fl;lf?'efc’f STEV:"Ihf;; NGT[CE O APPLI (J‘Tl ON OR o e k145 Tel: 07691543381 £400n0, Tel: 07535 878445
affected, should make written representations to piCTURES, €5, fwo COT Be0 F L F o HI-Fi GLASS TABLE, £30. HOUND GLASS TOP DINING
the Traffic Commissioner at Hillcrest House, 386 THROWS. gack VAR'AT ION OF A PREMISES bldel LAB7W L‘ggs"“ggscgi’: A s s, EaconggTel
g . A i nter excel- . :
Harehills L_an&_:, Leeds LS9 6NF, stating ll_mr HEIGHT CHART, £5 I.ICENCE UNDER SECTION 34 OF sold, gen- 540140 GLASS HI-FI TABLE vgc, £40
reasons within 21 days of this Notice. ?;&%Kfz‘mff TABhT“" THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2003 £55 Tl MACHINE for sale great condi-  Tel: 01268 540140
Repregen[ors must gt the same time §end a copy llca m Thornbu bL gg:d;zlg)u{; ggg; E:lehzef; rgfm:{; INDESIT TUMBLE DRYER
of their representations to the applicant at the 203279 APPi g, i Ty - JSEWING Tel: 07809 740839 YOz £80(oR 01269 770964
addtess given at the top of this Notice. A Guide to Lim te l'em ertigoe:  64;, ceam NEW, SINGLE BED, matirass,  esoono 1ot op0 moe mane
Making Representations is available from the Lou nge, 17-19. Sta LaneII 'f‘eg\[':"jlg rbr\odfejmgzlal K(rEaEr?Ds ir;;j Eﬁfg Wever oresscn: =
Traffic Commissioner's Office, HOIT'IChU!'Ch RM12 6]1_ ThE pro= B 01268 000, 1ok 07502 Ga0421 " 01702 476956, )
Collcts, €25, THAee 'Josed ariation is: the addltlon of cow. PHILIPS STERED AP bultin
COFFEE TABLES, one at b 1 20lo,resord deslo CO. player
“EEN wo. Tot
Korg, w2t iy org el ensable activities for films, live — HiNEEy o somitn. secaix
buyer coscts, S0, HTAND S (.
; Sk THE PIANO MAN, 20/30
LAMP WITH SHADE, iight ITIUSiC ancmg and Gther entertain- an., o5, ROCKING CHAIR, white glider, reconditioned pianos. Tuning,
flcan: Thordry - Solutions - buyer collects, £35. Thk 017 ment 0{ a similar. descn ‘UOI'I, the purple Gushions, very good  Femovals, Renlal scheme, We
frimies the Velgs 640379 i " or condltion, ideal nursery. E40.  ooliect unwanted planos 01268
Piemgbuch, M2 vari ltan Gf urs fO al censable ngf)B’?El Tel: 01702 510092 541001, 01706 343455
R uson i tha ol i 6> SMALL DOG OF CAT shelter
”"1"" e — activities and the opening hours; the 0o sy pos on nr e Pets &
end BLENDER, only uses removal and variation “of various ¢ will deliver free Basidon Area
once o twice, bargain £15, y Tel: 01268 473365 T
FISHER PRICE, sit to stand conditions. Further detalls can be JE, two mov- Livestock
giralfs, complete with balls, ’ b lic o deon x 30 THAEE PIECE SUITE, auturan
£10, TRAVELGOT, complete nbtamed Y inspecting the ~app :caﬁ a, $250m0. Tel:  60lours, Draylon. very good [ROMFORD GREYHOUND
wilh maltress, £10 only. MOSES fi Hh dd bBlOW A condition, €100, Tel: 07940 | OWNERS' ASSOGIATION
BASKET, complete with sland, 1on attne address s GREYHOUNDS
biue and white, suitable baby i
e Jam g cliaticloaty sentations by an mtereﬁted or OTBALL KT 12 WEIGHTS XQMAX A/t FREE

ge)
D
2
O
O
5
g@

CAR DESIGN, complete with
sun canopy, rain-cover, £10. Tel:
01702 348770,

BED, DOUBLE DIVAN,
[ aood cpmdition,
BED, SINGLE | DIVAN,

clean

respansible au:honb"
application can
censing Team, Housil

'Protectton, London Borou

regarcP ing this
e made to:
& Public

Arsenal PJ's 18-
1 brand new as
still tagged, £25
67836410

«itional green
1in wide x 54in
s brand new,

of

2 pairs 0.5kg each weight
Unused €4 a pair o €6 for botn
pairs. Tel: 07986 891231

BANJO, AMBASSADOR
SUPREMUS CIRCA 1940, Re
strung, £60 Tel: 07939 524304
(Westaliff)

These graceful animals
rake excellent pets and
ara very good with
people at home,
especially childrén and
qulckly return the
affection and love given

Caan mRHESH, vary good cony Ha\.renng' Quse fabric, £40 CAR SPARES, FORD FIESTA to them. Excessive

dificn, £65, GLHASEEER BEDS TR

£ CEnEnmON g Gardens Romford, RMT 3RX, welp. 67" A

A i 0x, hardly Ly K =
333. Wff..ﬁf".f.‘, rpoun' Slte. -\'VWW.haVEfm gﬁ\".uk 5”6}1 7 |rl|(‘r;udd$!: AITERNATOR FOR 25 LTR 01 70§ngz]‘s)895
consiion, possitie delivery, repres _ntat[gn mus \l‘eﬁ [ ; art guide, JAGUAR X OR S TYPE £40 Tel: ) 1o
o offenice b £5, €75, Tel 01704 453490, ertlng I 6 I‘ A ﬂ:h 2312 e s mé 07956 975867 rgoa.co.u

stating the grounds upon which the £9¢
repr(sentanon is made | in reiatlen o cles

the:
Act 2003.
Itis. an

( y
lessly make a false statement in con-

four ob

nection with an application.

for the g

The maximum fine for which a cge
son is liable on summiary

jectives of the Licensing

ditio
ROG
dark
£99,
size




Page 20



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 1 - Copy of Application

Page 21



Page 22



[insert name and address of relevant licensing authority and its reference number (optional)]

Application to Vary a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003

[

Schedule 4 to the Licéﬁ)sing Act 2003
(Premlses Licences and Club Premises
Certificates) Regulations 2005

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you
are completing thls form by hand please write legibly in BLOCK capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are Inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(1) Delete as mH][We]2)

applicable. THORNBURY SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(2) Insert name(s)
of applicant(s).

being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the

Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number |009762

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

VERTIGO LOUNGE
17-19 STATION LANE

Post town HORNCHURCH

Telephone number at premises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £ 22250.00

Part 2 - Applicant details

Daytime contact telephone number 01708 460510

E-mail address
(optional)

Current postal
address If
different from
premises address

Post Town

Part 3 - Variation

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible? | X

22A STATION LANE

HORNCHURCH

If not do you want the variation to take effect from

\\mpevoliecs$\live letters\108054\1 06054-0001-9\[LICQ]MaJorVarlationAJEo@'

ge 23

/
Post code RM12 6JL
s
Postcode [RM12 6NT
Please tick g Yes
Day Month  Year
L1C9/1



Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please read guidance note 1)
A VARIATION TO THE LAYOUT OF THE PREMISES.

A VARIATION OF THE LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES (SEE PART 4 OF THIS APPLICATION)
A VARIATION OF THE LICENSABLE HOURS (SEE PART 4 OF THIS APPLICATION)

REMOVAL OF VARIATION CONDITIONS AS SET OUT ON THE ATTACH CONTINUATION SHEET.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are expected to
attend the premises at any one time, please state the number expected to attend

Part 4 - Operating Schedule

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful.

Provision of regulated entertainment Please tick ¢ yes
(a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)
(b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) X
(¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)
(d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)
(e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) X
(f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) X
(9) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) %
(h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) X
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)
Provision of entertainment facilities for:
(i) making music (if ticking yes, fill in box I) %
() dancing (if ticking yes, fill in box J) =
(k) entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (i) or (j)
(if ticking yes, fill in box K) o
Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box L)
Sale by retall of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box M) X

In all cases complete boxes N, O and P

\\mpevoliecs$\live |etters\1oeos4\108054-0001-9\[|.|ce]MaJorVanaﬁoana:ge 24

LIC9/2



A

Plays WIIl the performance of a play take place indoors or outdoors Indoors
Standard days and timings or both - please tick [¢#*] (please read guidance note 2)
(please read guidance note 6) Outdoors
Day [Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read guidance note 4)
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of plays at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)
Sat
Sun
Films Will the exhibition of films take place Indoors or outdoors Indoors
Standard days and timings or both - please tick [¢#”] (please read guidance note 2)
(please read guidance note 6) Outdoors
Day |[Start Finish Both/ | x
Mon [1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue 1200 2300
Wed [1200 2300 State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read guidance
note 4)
The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
Thur |1200 2300 licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Years Day.
Fri 1200 2400 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition of
films at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)
Sat 10000 0100
1200 2400
Sun - o000 0100
1200 2300

\mpevollecsSiive letters\10B0541108064-0001-0\LICOMajorvariationapp BRAJE 2D

LICO/3



C

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 3)

Day

Start

Finish

Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for Indoor sporting events (please read guidance

note 4)

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for indoor sporting

events at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)

D

Boxing_or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take place indoors or Indoors
entertainments outdoors or bhoth - please tick [¢~] (please read guidance note 2)
o Outdoors

Standard days and timings

(please read guidance note 6) Both

Day |Start Finish Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Mon

Tue
State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment  (please read
guidance nhote 4)

Wed

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for hoxing or
wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed In the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

\\mpevollecs$liive letters\108054\1 05054-0001-9\[L|cs]MajorVariationAR&ge 26

LIC9/4



E

Live music Will the performance of live music take place Indoors or Indoors
Standard days and timings outdoors or both - please tick [¢#”] (please read guidance note 2) Ouidoo =
(please read guidance note 6)
Both. %
Day |[Start Finish Please give further detalls here (please read guidance note 3)
Mon 1200 2300
Tue 1200 2300
State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music_(please read
guidance note 4)
Wed [1200 2300 The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Thur (1200 2300 Years Day.
Fri 1200 2400 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed In the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat 0000 0100
1200 2400
Sun 10000 0100
1200 2300
y.
Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or Indoors | x
Standard days and timings outdoors or both - please tick [¢#] (please read guidance note 2)
(please read guidance note 6) Outdoors
Both
Day |Start Finish Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Mon 1000 2300
Tue 1000 2300
State any seasonal varlations for the playing of recorded music (please read
Wed 1000 2300 guidance note 4)
B The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Thur 1000 2300 Years Day.
Fri 1000 2400 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing of
recorded muslc at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat 0000 0100
1000 2400
Sun |0000 0100
1000 2300

LICO/5

\\mpevoliecs$llive letters\108054\108054-0001-9\(LICSIMajorVariationApp bR age 27




G

Performances of dance  |Will the performance of dance take place indoors or outdoors Indoors
Standard days and timings or both - please tick [¢~] (please read guidance note 2) Outdoors -
(please read guidance note 6) Béth | «
Day |Start Finish Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3) k
Mon [1200 2300
Tue 1200 2300
State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please read guidance
note 4)
Wed = g0 The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Thur 1200 2300 Years Day.
Fri 1200 2400 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance
of dance at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat 0000 0100
1200 2400
Sun 0000 0100
1200 2300

H

\\mpevollecs$\live Ietters\108054\108054-0001-9\[L|CQ]MajorVariation@afge 28

Anything of a similar Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and timings
BIease EedgHicencainaials) Will this entertainment take place indoors or outdoors or Indoors
= = = both - please tick [¢#] (please read guidance note 2) Outdoors |
y a inis Bot | x
Mon 1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3) |
Tue 1200 2300
Wed [1200 2300 State any seasonal varlations for entertainment of a similar description to that
falling within (e), (f) or (9) (please read guidance note 4)
The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
Thur |1200 2300 licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Years Day.
Fri 1200 2400
Non §tandard timlnqs Where you intend to use the premlgg for the
Sat 0000 0100 tlmesto those Ilsted in the column on the ft le ist (please read guldance
note 5)
1200 2400
Sun 0000 0100
1200 2300 /s
//
“ LIcoss




Provision of facilities for Please ¢ive a description of the facilities for making music you will be providing
making music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note 6)
Will the facilitles for making music be indoors or outdoors Indoors
or both - please tick [¢#] (please read guidance note 2) Outdoors
Day Start Finish
Both | %
Mon [1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue 1200 2300
Wed [1200 2300 State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for making music
(please read guidance note 4)
On New Years Eve the licensable hours shall be from the end of
Thur 1200 2300 the licensable hours on New Years Eve to the beginning of the
licensable hours on New Years Day.
Fri 1200 0000 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for provision of
0000 0100 facilities for making music at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 5)
Sat 1200 0000
0000 0100
sun [1200 2300

J

Provision of facilities for |Will the facilities for dancing be indoors or outdoors or Indoors

dancing both - please tick [e#] (please read guidance note 2) Outdoors, -

Standard days and timings —

(please read guidance note 6) Both | x
Please give a description of the facilities for dancing you will be providing

Day |Start Finish

Mon |1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 1200 2300

Wed |2200 2300 State any seasonal variations for providing dancing facilities (please read guidance
note 4)
On New Years Eve the licensable hours shall be from the end of

Thur (1200 2300 the licensable hours on New Years Eve to the beglnning of the
licensable hours on New Years Day.

Fri 1200 2400 Non standard timings. Where you Intend to use the premises for the provision of
facilities for dancing at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat 0000 0100

1200 2400
Sun 0000 0100
1200 2400

\mpevohiecsSlive letters\1080541108054-0001-9\LICOMajorvarlationapp bt € 29 Blesar



K

Provision of facilities for |Please give a description of the type of entertainment facility you will be providing
entertainment of a
similar description to
that falling within | or J
Standard days and timings Will the entertainment facility be indoors or outdoors Indoors <M
(please read guidance note 6) | or both - please tick [e#] (please read guidance note 2) SLTIooTs '
Day Start Finish Both
Mon [1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)
Tue 1200 2300
Wed (1200 2300 State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for entertainment of a
similar description to that falling within | or J (please read guidance note 4)
The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
Thur [1200 2300 licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Years Day.
Fri 1200 2400
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provision of
Sat facilities for entertainment of a similar description to that falling within | or J at
a 0000 0100 different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
1200 2400 guidance note 5)
Sun 0000 0100
1200 2300

L

Late night refreshment  |will the provision of late night refreshment take place Indoors

Standard days and timings indoors or outdoors or both - please tick [e#] (please read outd

(please read guidance note 6) |guidance note 2) HES00S

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue

Wed otate any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshiment (please
read guidance note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provision of
late night refreshment at different times to those listed in the column on the left,
please list (please read guidance note 5)

Sat

Sun

LICo/8

Wmpevollecs$ilive letters\108054\1 08054-0001-9\[L|cs]MajorVariationARage 30



M

Supply of alcohol Il the supply of alcohol be for consumption On the premises
Standard days and timings (Please tick box ¢~ ) (please read guidance note 7) Off the premises
(please read guidance note 6) Both | x
Day |Start Finish State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read guidance
note 4)
Mon [1200 2300 The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on
New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New
Tue 1200 2300 Years Day.
Wed 1200 2300
Thur (1200 2300 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of
alcohol at different times to those listed In the column on the left, please list
(please read guidance note 5)
Fri 1200 2400
Sat 0000 0100
1200 0000
Sun 0000 0100
1200 2300

N

v

NONE

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the
use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please read guidance note 8)

\mpevohecs$illve letters\108054\1 08054—0001-9\[LICQ]MajorVariationApp.oE

age 31

LICo/®



o

Hours premises are State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 4)
open to the public The hours shall be varied such that on New Years Eve the
Standard days and timings licensable hours shall be from the end of the licensable hours on

(please read guidance note 6) |New Years Eve to the beginning of the licensable hours on New

Y D .
Day |Stat  |Finish R

Mon |1200 2330

Tue 1200 2330

Wed (1200 2330 Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to the public at

different times from those listed In the column on the left, please list (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur [1200 2330

Fri 1200 0000
Sat 0000 0130
1200 0000
1200 0000 /
v
Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a
consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking
Please see continuation sheet
|8
v
Please tick g yes
| have enclosed the premises licence
I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence If you have not ticked one of these boxes please fill in
reasons for not Including the licence, or part of it, below

Reasons why | have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence

The Premises Licence has not yet been issued by the Licensing Authority following a
minor variation, however a copy of the licence (provided by e-mail) is enclosed,.

/

LIC9/10

\mpevollecsSilive letiers\108054\108054-0001-8\LICOMalorvariationAbB @ € 32



Describe any additional steps you Intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed
variation:

(a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d, e) (please read guidance note 9)

Please see continuation sheet

(b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Please see continuation sheet

(c) Public safety

Please see continuation sheet

(d) The prevention of public nuisance

Please see continuation sheet

(e) The protection of chlldren from harm

Please see continuation sheet

\mpevohecs$ilve letters\108054108054-0001-S\[LICOMalorVariationappkfalg @ 33 LICoM1



Please tick g yes

® | have made or enclosed payment of the fee

® | have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others whers applicable
® | understand that | must now advertise my application

® | have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation

® | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected

CEEETE

IT 1S AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5§ ON THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER
?EICSTIAOPI: 1508 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH
LICATION

Part 5 - Signatures (please read guidance note 10)

Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised

agent (please {e‘gt_d?uidance note 11). If signing on hehalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.
b g .':’;

Signature 4 !/

Date 62 / 20/
Capacity SOLICITOR FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT.

Where the premises licence is jointly held signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises licence holder) or
2nd applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the
applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature
Date
Capacity

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with this
application (please read guidance note 13)

Mullis & Peake LLP

8-10 Eastern Road

Romford

Essex

Posttown pggssex Post code rM1 3PJ

Telephone number (if any) 01708 784000
If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

Notes for Guidance

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or

to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises

licence you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003,

1. Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other Information which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend te provide
a plag:e for consumption of these off-supplies you must Include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

2, Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate. Indoors may include a tent.

3. For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

4. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

5. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (eg 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week when you intend the premises to
be used for the activity.

7. |f you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises please tick on. If you wish people to be able to purchase
alcohol to consume away from the premises please tick off. If you wish people to be able to do both please tick both.

8. Please give Information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but
not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups, the presence of gaming machines.

9. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together,

10. The application form must be signed.

11, An applicant's agent (for example sclicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have actual authority to do so.

12. Where there is more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents must sign the application form.

13, This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

OyEZ 7 spa Road, London SE16 300 2.2005

© Crown copyright PW$4
atloRAPp.0

\\mpevol\ecs$ilive letters\1080541108054-0001-9\[LICO]MajorVarl LiC9/12



Removal of conditions 2, 6, 7, 11, 13, 15, 20, 22, 26, 27, 28, 30, 31, 32, 33,
34, 35, 36, 42, 43, 44, 48, 50, 62, 66, 69, 70, 77, 78, 80, 83, 88, 89, 92, 93,
99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 107, 111, 115, 116, 137, 143

Remove condition 16 and replace with;
The last entry time for patrons will be thirty minutes prior to the end of

the licensable activity.

Remove condition 52 and replace with:

Door staff shall use counters at appropriate and busy times and take
necessary action to ensure the maximum capacity numbers are not
exceeded.

Remove condition 71 and replace with;
The bi-fold doors and windows at the front of the premises shall be
closed by 2100 on Friday and Saturdays.

Remove condition 98 and replace with:
The external lighting to the roof garden will be in accordance with Health

and Safety.

Remove condition 113 and replace with;

The premises licence holder shall implement a written children’s policy
which must be approved in writing by the Police or Havering’s Children
and Young Persons services and any amendments will be likewise
approved.

Remove condition 117 and replace with;
The maximum number of persons including staff and entertainers
allowed at the premises shall be 260.

To add the following to the end of condition 125:
Any amendments to the policy will be approved by Havering Police.

Remove condition 126 and replace with:
The Designated Premises Supervisor shall attend a relevant drugs
awareness course from an accredited body or local authority.

Remove condition 138 and replace with:
Premises which have a policy that includes the searching of persons
shall have door supervisors of both sexes on duty at all times.

A new condition in the following words:
Any drinks promotion will be at a minimum of £2.00

Page 35



Thornbury Solutions Ltd.

1 March 2012

For the attention David Fern and Paul Jones

17/19 Station Lane
Hornchurch

Bssex
RM12 6JL

01708 474183

Please accept this letter as confirmation of agreement to the terms discussed
and detailed in the attached letter regarding amendments to our premises

licence.
Licence No. 009762

Regards

Steven Stallion

For and on behalf of
Thornbury Solutions Ltd

Co. Rteg. No. 7898870

Page 36

Val No: 128 1136 39

Email: office@vertigolounge.co.uk



VERTIGO LOUNGE

Further to our meeting at 1100 hours on 28/02/2012 at the premises | would like
to purpose the following additional conditions to the licence.

I'am in agreement with all other conditions being removed if these conditions are
accepted.

* The venue shall use toughened glass and or polycarbonate drinking
vessels at all times in all areas, except after 2200 hours the roof terrace
shall be reserved for smokers and only polycarbonate drinking vessels will
be permitted on the terrace.

* No person is permitted to enter or exit the venue with any drinking vessel,
except for off sales were the item must be sealed upon sale and not
consumed directly in front of the premises.

* Children under 18 will not be permitted on the premises after 1900 hours
daily until the end of licensable activity, unless specified under the
children’s policy.

AMENDMENTS from the application, (slight rewording)

Remove condition 117 and replace with

The maximum number of persons including staff and entertainers allowed at the
premises shall be 260 this will be split over 3 floors in accordance with LFB
advice.

Remove condition 138 and replace with

Premises which have a policy that includes the searching of persons shall have
door supervisors of both sexes on duty at all times when required.

Page 37



VERTIGO LOUNGE

BAR & TERRACE

GROUND FLOOR

Page 38




VERTIGO LOUNGE

BAR & TERRACE

FIRST FLOOR

Page 39




VERTIGO LOUNGE

BAR & TERRACE

SECOND FLOOR

Page 40




Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 2 - Premises Licence

Page 41



Page 42



Havering

x'_t(jn'im.ll?: LONDON BOROUGH

Premises licence nhumber

Part 1 - Premises details

Postal address of premises

Vertigo Lounge
17-19 Station Lane Hornchurch RM12 6JL

Where the Ilcence is tlme llmlted the dates

Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised b by the licence

Recorded music, supply of alcohol

The times the Ilcence  authorises the carrying out of Ilcensable activities

Recorded music
Sunday to Thursday —10:00 to 23:00
Friday & Saturday —10:00 to 00:00

Supply of alcohol
Sunday to Thursday — 12:00 to 23:00
Friday & Saturday — 12:00 to 00:00

The opening hours of the premises

Sunday to Thursday — 10:00 to 23:30
Friday & Saturday —~ 10:00 to 00:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or off supplies

On and off supplies

Name, (reg|stered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premlses

licence
Thornbury Solutions Ltd
14-18 Forest Road Loughton IG10 1DX
01708 746173 / vertigolounge@hotmail.co.uk
o I o _10of13
Co
Signed ................. {)7 .............................

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070



hRegiste'red number of holder

7898870

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premlses licence
authorises for the supply of alcohol

Mr Steven James Stallion
30 Mount Pleasant Road, Romford RM5 3YL
07947 820310

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol

BREK000849 - Breckland Council

Mandatory conditions

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:

(a) atatime when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised

by a person who holds a personal licence.

3. (1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff
on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of
the following: activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the
purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on
the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or
contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public
nuisance, or harm to children -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed
to require or encourage, individuals to-

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink
alcohol sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the
period in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply
alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a
fixed or discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a
particular characteristic (other than any promotion or discount
available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a
table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act);

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to
encourage or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a
period of 24 hours or less;

2of13

e T T A S S e 2 - .

Page 44



e e T e s o= _H__--__ "

Mandatory conditions — contd.

(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on
the premises of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent
on—

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
(i) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or
flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be
considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour
or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.

4. The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one
person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable
to drink without assistance by reason of a disability).

5. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

6. The responsible person shall ensure that —

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for
consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied
having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely
closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—

(i) beer orcider: 'z pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 mi or 35 ml; and

(i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

7. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure

that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to
be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

8. If at specified times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out
a security activity each such individual must be licensed by the Security Industry
Authority.

1. The provision of hot food shall cease at 20:00.

2. There shall be no discounting, ‘happy hour’ or drinks deals on offer.

3. On Friday and Saturday a strictly over 25’s policy shall be in place from 19:00
onwards until the premises closes. An over 21’s policy shall be in place from
19:00 for the rest of the week.

4. The premises licence holder shall retain under contract a fully qualified, highly
experienced environmental health officer who shall have at least 25 years’
experience in various disciplines, in particular in respect of Health & Safety
matters, with local authorities.

...................................................

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070



Anhé;( Z_Q-C'bﬁditions cb'hsis:i

5.

6.

10.
11.
12,
13.
14.
18.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21,
22,
23.

24,

25,

26.

ent with the operating schedule — contd.
The premises licence holder shall adopt an absolute and irrevocable zero
tolerance of drugs and substance abuse within the premises.

The premises licence holder shall actively promote through signage and other.
methods its zero tolerance drugs policy.

The premises licence holder shall report to the Police all instances of drug or
substance abuse where detected.

A log of drugs transgressions shall be kept when they come to light. This log
shall be made available to the authorities on request.

Lavatories and cubicle areas shall be designed to avoid flat surfaces and where
the use of these is unavoidable such surfaces shall be covered with petroleum
jelly or other oil based substances to assist in the prevention of drug and/or
substance abuse.

A secure facility to store seized/confiscated controlled drugs shall be available
previous to the hand over of the drugs to the Police.

Individuals who appear to be drinking excessively will not be served and staff
shall be trained in recognising and acting upon such instances.

If the premises’ CCTV system is inoperative the Police and Licensing Authority
shall be informed as soon as possible.

Alcoholic and soft drinks shall be served in plastic or toughened glasses to
patrons using the roof garden.

No customers carrying open or sealed bottles or glasses shall be admitted to
the premises at any time.

No customers shall be permitted to take open containers of alcoholic or soft
drinks from the premises.

The last entry times for patrons shall be 22:45 Sunday to Thursday and 23:45
Friday and Saturday.

A proof of age policy shall be in force to the satisfaction of the Police, Trading
Standards and Licensing Authority of Havering Council.

All proof of age schemes within the London Borough of Havering shall be
adhered to.

The premises licence holder shall participate in a radio and infrastructure
scheme as it exists in Hornchurch Town Centre.

Customers shall be able to purchase alcoholic drinks in the legally prescribed
minimum measures without the premises ‘upselling’.

Crime prevention notices both specific and general shall be displayed warning
customers of the prevalence of crime which may target them.

A ‘customer code of conduct’ poster shall be displayed warning customers that
if they act in an inappropriate manner they will be barred from the premises.
Any restrictions on the admission of children to the premises shall be displayed
outside the premises.

The premises licence holder shall be a member of any suitable local schemes
for licensed premises and a representative shall attend any meetings and
participate in all initiatives.

The premises licence holder shall ensure a policy is in force for the
management of large single-sex groups, i.e. hen and stag parties.

Large single-sex groups shall be required to nominate a responsible person to
liaise with staff.




————————— 4 = B T e e e

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule — contd.

27. A secure area for customers’ personal belongings shall be made available.

28. An incident book shall be kept in which all instances of public disorder shall be
recorded.

29. Any queue management policy the premises licence holder considers
necessary to implement shall be made in writing and adopted on approval of the
Licensing Authority.

30. The fire safety measures with which the premises is provided shall be
maintained in good working order and their adequacy shall be determined on a
regular basis by the carrying out of a fire risk assessment as required by and in
accordance with the Fire Precautions (Workplace) Regulations.

31. The electrical system including portable appliances shall be inspected and
tested annually by a competent person to ensure safety.

32. Where temporary electrical equipment is to be used a suitable circuit breaker
device shall be installed to cover this equipment. The circuit breaker should
operate at a current not exceeding 30 MA and shall comply with BS4293. The
device shall be tested six monthly and tests shall be recorded.

33. Temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems shall not be installed
unless inspected by a suitably qualified electrician. Temporary electrical wiring
and distribution systems shall comply with BS7871 or where applicable BS7909.

34. Temporary electrical wiring and distribution systems not installed by a suitably
qualified electrician shall be inspected and certified by one before they are put
to use.

35. Any gas supply system including gas appliances shall be inspected and tested
by a ‘GASAFE’ registered gas engineer annually and a satisfactory Gas Safety
Certificate shall be obtained.

36. All safety certificates and inspection reports shall be kept on site and made
available for inspection by officers of relevant statutory bodies.

37. When disabled people are present adequate arrangements shall exist to enable
their safe evacuation from the premises in the event of an emergency.

38. Persons restricted to wheel chairs shall be permitted to the lower floor of the
premises only.

39. An air management system within the premises shall be used during opening
times to counteract the insufficient ventilation caused by the closure of
windows and doors which prevents noise breakout.

40. If special effects such as strobe lighting, smoke, foam, lasers, pyrotechnics, dry
ice or bubbles are used full safety controls shall be in place following
consultation with Havering’s Environmental Health Department.

41. Gangways, exit routes and steps shall be maintained in good order with non-
slippery and even surfaces. Edges of steps and stairways shall be
conspicuously marked.

42. Where glazing forms part of windows, walls or partitions at or below waist
height it shall be constructed of safety materials. Due consideration shall also
be given to relevant safety standards and codes of practice including Building
Control Approved Documents K & N, BS6399-1:1996 and BS6180:1995.

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070



-Ann

43.

a4,

45.

46.

47.
48,
49.

50.

51.

52,

53.

54,

5.

D R R BRSNS — -—

ex 2 - Conditions consistent with the opefatihg schedule —contd.

Where glazing forms part of a door or side panel at or below shoulder height it
shall be constructed of safety materials. Due consideration shall also be given
to relevant safety standards and codes of practice including Building Control
Approved Documents K & N, BS6399-1:1996 and BS6180:1995.

All staff shall receive suitable training as to what to do in an emergency and in
general safety precautions as well as the discharge of the duties of their job
function. This shall form part of a formalised induction and operating
procedures manual with appropriate written records and reviews. These
records shall be made available for inspection to a relevant responsible
authority when called upon.

Employees shall be distributed throughout the venue on all levels on Friday and
Saturday evenings in the discharge of their duties. They shall be in radio
contact with each other as well as with any SIA registered door supervisors
should the need arise.

The provision of plastic glasses and bottles shall be reviewed depending on the
type of entertainment provided and the number and nature of patrons attending.
Regular glass and bottle collections shall be undertaken throughout the
opening hours. Glassware and bottles where collected on the first or second
floors shall be conveyed via the service lift serving all floors to the service
support areas.

Only plastic glasses or bottles shall be permitted in the roof garden after 19:00.
A service lift shall be located within the bar service area serving all floors. The
service lift in concert with table/hostess service shall eliminate the need for
service staff to convey glassware or liquids to clientele via the staircase.

No person shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in possession of any
glass drinking vessel or open glass bottle whether empty or containing any
beverage. Drinks for consumption outside the premises shall be served in non-
glassware drinking vessels.

A means of addressing patrons during operating hours which can be heard
above entertainment or a means of interrupting the entertainment to make
important safety announcements shall be available.

The premises licence holder shall when required and appropriate and at busy
times employ an appropriate method for checking the number of people within
the premises at peak times periodically and ensure steps are taken so that once
the maximum occupancy is reached no further persons are admitted.

Smokers shall be invited to use the outside area on the terrace on the second
floor.

SIA approved door supervisors shall manage access to the premises on Friday
and Saturday evenings and other peak periods. Their duties shall include the
control of occupation levels as well as those individuals who enter the
premises.

Fire exit ways from the upper levels shall be provided by the provision of an
enclosed staircase with a 60 minute fire rating opening directly at ground level.

. All floor coverings shall be secured and maintained so that they will not ruck.

Mats shall be fitted into mat wells so as to be flush with the floor surface.

. Hangings, curtains and temporary decorations shall be maintained in a flame

retardant condition.
5 of 13




Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule — contd.

58. Upholstered seating shall be fire retardant and compliant with current fire safety
regulations.

59. Curtains, hangings and temporary decorations shall not obstruct exits, fire
safety signs or fire-fighting equipment.

60. Notices detailing the actions to be taken in the event of a fire or other
emergency shall be prominently displayed and maintained in good condition.

61. Fire drill and emergency lighting tests shall be conducted monthly. Records of
these tests shall be made available to the Licensing Authority upon request.

62. All fire exits and means of escape shall be signed in accordance with BS5498.

63. An evacuation policy shall be in place that is to the satisfaction of the Fire
Authority.

64. All staff members shall be trained in the premises’ evacuation policy.

65. Wall and ceiling finishes shall be fire resistant.

66. Exit doors shall open outwards or shall be secured in the open position.

67. The Fire Authority shall be called to any outbreak of fire however slight.

68. Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the premises such as to cause
persons in the neighbourhood to be unreasonably disturbed.

69. All external doors and windows shall be kept shut other than for access and
egress at times likely to give rise to noise taking place or when a manager
assesses the need to do so.

70. External doors and windows shall be closed by 23:30 at the latest in any event.

71. Doors and windows shall be closed by 20:00 on Friday and Saturday.

72. Sufficient ventilation shall be provided so that doors and windows can be kept
closed indefinitely.

73. Suitable signage at all relevant exits requesting that patrons make as little noise
as possible when leaving the premises shall be displayed.

74, Patrons shall be asked not to stand around talking in the street outside the
premises and asked to leave the vicinity quickly and quietly.

75. An announcement shall be made prior to closing requesting patrons’ co-
operation in leaving the premises and vicinity as quietly and quickly as possible.

76. A noise limiting device shall be installed, fitted and maintained if required by the
Local Authority in such a manner as to control all sources of amplified music
from the premises.

77. Sound levels to the ground and first floor shall be at a guideline maximum
sound level of 95 Db subject to review by the relevant department.

78. Sound levels to the second floor enclosure shall be at a guideline maximum
sound level of 50 Db subject to review by the relevant department.

79. Staff shall be positioned around the exit particularly at closing time to ensure
noise from patrons leaving the premises is minimised.

80. A specific taxi operator shall be recommended by the premises licence holder
for staff and customers’ use; the taxi company’s base shall be approximately
100 metres from the premises.

Signed ............... Cé\{) \(

...........................

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070



Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule — contd.

81. Staff shall recommend that their customers attend the taxi company’s base in
order to negate people waiting outside for their taxis to arrive and to negate
taxis waiting for their passengers to leave the premises.

82. Staff shall be instructed to leave the premises as quietly as possible,
particularly at night.

83. A manager at the premises shall assess the impact of noise on neighbouring
residential premises periodically throughout the evening.

84. The volume of sound used in connection with any music played shall at all
times be under the control of the management.

85. The premises shall be fitted with electrically operated roller shutters to the front
elevation.

86. The provision of mechanical ventilation and air conditioning systems shall not
allow noise breakout from the premises or cause a nuisance by its operation.

87. Regular maintenance shall be carried out on all plant and machinery to ensure
that noise disturbance from such sources is kept to a minimum.

88. Regard shall be given to BS4142 rating industrial noise affecting mixed
residential and industrial areas and the Institute of Acoustics good practice
guide on the control of noise from pubs and clubs.

89. The delivery of goods shall be carried out on any day apart from Sunday
restricted between the hours of 09:00 to 11:00.

90. Storage areas for beer kegs, bottles and other similar items shall be contained
within the building itself.

91. Bottle skips and bins containing cans or bottles shall not be emptied outside
after closing but shall be dealt with the next day during normal office hours.

92. The movement of bins and rubbish outside the premises shall be kept to a
minimum and shall be dealt with during normal office hours.

93. The use of the external area to the frontage at the second floor shall not
commence before the start of normal trading hours and shall cease 60 minutes
before the cessation of the supply of alcohol.

94. No music or speech shall be relayed by external speakers to outside areas
during any evening after 19:00.

95. Low levels of music at ground level provided during the day shall not be audible
in the street.

96. Ventilation equipment shall be regularly cleaned and maintained to minimise the
levels of odour generated by the premises.

97. All rubbish produced by the premises shall be stored securely in a designated
area or in a bin with a tight fitting and lockable lid.

98. The use of external lighting shall cease at 23:00 to the roof gardens and 00:30 to
the front elevation except for reasons of health and safety or security.

99. The premises shall be inclusive and child friendly until 18:00.

100. The premises licence holder shall not actively seek to draw children and young

persons into the premises as customers,

101. The presence of children on the premises shall be incidental to the attendance

of adults at all times.

102, A selection of ‘healthy menu’ options shall be made available for children to

choose from,

103. Baby food or bottles shall be heated for patrons on request.




Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule - contd.

104. Children on the premises shall be accompanied by an adult at all times.

105. The entrance doors shall be double openers and shall be designed to afford
double buggies and prams easy access and egress.

106. Baby changing facilities shall be available for baby and toddler needs.

107. Children and under 21’s shall vacate the premises during Sunday to
Wednesday inclusive by 18:30. Children and under 25's shall vacate the
premises during Thursday to Saturday inclusive by 18:30.

108. Quiz machines, fruit machines or other types of gaming machines shall not be
provided.

109. A crime prevention policy agreed by the Police and the Local Authority shall be
in place.

110. No element of nudity or striptease shall be engaged at the premises in any
form at any time.

111. Physical contact between staff and customers shall not be permitted.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a ﬁ;a;i-ﬁg by the Licénsing Authority '

112. All staff shall be suitably trained for their job function for the premises. The
training shall be written into a programme ongoing and regularly reviewed and
must be available to a relevant responsible authority when called upon.

113. The premises licence holder shall implement a written children’s policy which
must be approved in writing by the Police or Havering’s Children and Young
Persons services. It should include: ‘Where the sale of alcohol is a licensed
activity no persons under 18 shall be admitted to or allowed to remain on the
premises between 21:00hrs and 06:00hrs’, unless specifically covered in the
children’s policy.

114. All door supervisors shall enter their full details in the premises daily register
at the commencement of work. This shall record their full name, home
address, contact telephone number, SIA registration number and the time they
commenced and concluded working. If the door supervisor was supplied by an
agency details of that agency shall also be recorded including the name of the
agency, the registered business address and a contact telephone number.

115. All drinks in glass bottles shall be decanted into polycarbonate vessels at the
bar servery area prior to supplying it to the customer.

116. No person shall be allowed to leave the premises whilst in the possession of
any glass drinking vessel or open glass bottle whether empty or containing
any beverage. Drinks for consumption outside the premises shall be served in
non-glassware drinking vessels, e.g. plastic, polystyrene, waxed paper.

Note: weights and measures legislation requires the use of ‘stamped glasses’
where ‘meter-measuring equipment’ is not in use.

117. The maximum number of persons including staff and entertainers allowed at
the premises shall not exceed 200, i.e. 60 on the second floor, 60 on the first
floor, 80 on the ground floor.

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070

Page 51



Annex 3 - Condltlons attached after a hearmg by the anensmg Authorlty contd.

118. A premises daily register shall be kept at the premises. This register shall be

118.

120.

121.

122,

123.

maintained and kept for a minimum of 12 months. This register should record
the name of the person responsible for the premises on each given day. The
premises daily register shall record all calls made to the premises where there
is a complaint made by a resident or neighbour of noise, nuisance or anti-
social behaviour by persons attending or leaving the premises. This shall
record the details of the caller, the time and date of the call, the time and date
of the incident about which the call is made and any actions taken to deal with
the call. The premises daily register shall be readily available for inspection by
an authorised person throughout the trading hours of the premises. The
premises daily register shall also record all incidents in relation to the use of
any force by staff or door supervisors in the removal of persons from the
premises. It shall record the time and date of the occurrence, name or brief
description of the person removed and details of the staff members involved.
A properly specified and fully operational CCTV system shall be installed or the
existing system maintained to a satisfactory standard. The system shall
incorporate a camera covering each of the entrance doors and be capable of
providing an image which is regarded as ‘identification standard’ of all
persons entering and/or leaving the premises. All other areas of risk identified
in the operational requirement shall have coverage appropriate to the risk.
The installation or upgrading of any CCTV system shall comply with current
best practice. In addition the documentation listed below shall be included in
a ‘system file’ which should be readily available for inspection by the relevant
authority:

e site plan showing position of cameras and their field of view

o Code of Practice.

o performance specification, e.g. storage capacity, image file size, IPS

for each camera and purpose of each camera position

o operational requirement

* incident log

* maintenance records including weekly visual checks
To obtain a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering the
premises on the CCTV system persons entering the premises should be asked
to remove headwear unless worn as part of religious observance.
The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and all recordings shall
be securely stored for a minimum of one calendar month. A system shall be in
place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete audit trail
maintained. The system shall comply with other essential legislation and all
signs as required shall be clearly displayed. The system shall be maintained
and fully operational throughout the hours that the premises is open for any
licensable activity.
The positions of all CCTV cameras shall be clearly shown on a set of plans
which should form part of the ‘system file’. Any alteration to the system
should only be carried out after consultation with and written approval of
Havering Police and the Licensing Authority.

10 of 13

Page 52



Annex 3 - Conditions attached

124.

125.

126.
127.
128.

129.

130.
131.
132.

133.

134.

135.

136.

137.

138.

after a hea
A staff member from the premises who can operate the CCTV system shall be
on the premises at all times when the premises is open to the public. This
staff member shall be able to show Police recent data or footage with the
absolute minimum of delay when requested.

The premises licence holder shall implement a written drugs policy. This shall
detail the strategies to minimise the use and supply of illegal drugs within the
premises. The drugs policy shall include a structured training programme
covering the issues relevant to the misuse of drugs in relation to licensed
premises which shall be delivered to all staff. This policy shall be approved in
writing by Havering Police.

The designated premises supervisor shall hold a National Certificate of Drugs
Awareness qualification run by the Bll or similar accredited body.

All staff shall be trained in dealing with persons who are incapacitated through
the use of drugs or the combined effect of drugs and alcohol.

An adequate and appropriate supply of first aid equipment and materials shall
be available on the premises.

At least one trained first-aider shall be on duty when the public are present. A
trained first aider is someone who holds a current first aid at work certificate;
the training to have heen approved by the HSE.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through
the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

The premises shall be arranged to minimise the risk of noise nuisance to
nearby properties.

Entertainment is to be held internally only and no music or speakers shall be
provided to external areas of the premises.

Staff shall be given adequate training to prevent them causing unnecessary
noise when they leave the premises and prominent clear notices displayed at
all points where staff leave the building must instruct them to respect the
needs of local residents and leave the premises and the area quietly.

The specification and orientation of all speakers shall be agreed with the
Licensing Authority / responsible authority.

A proof of age scheme such as Challenge 25 shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification card such as a driving licence or passport.

Prominent clear notices shall be displayed at the point of entry to the premises
and in a suitable location at any points of sale advising customers that they
may be asked to produce evidence of their age.

When operating drinks promotions on any day of the week a written policy
shall be produced. The policy shall detail the extra measures in place to deal
with departing patrons both throughout and at the end of the promotion. It
shall include the policy for refusing to serve persons who are drunk. The
policy shall be agreed in writing by Havering Police.

Premises which have a policy that includes the searching of persons shall
have door supervisors of both sexes on duty at all times.

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070

Page 53



Annex 3 - Cor;&itibné attached aftera hea;ing;_by“tﬁ -I:_i;:_énéi_ng'A_u_tho-ri_ty:ééht-d.- _

139.

140.

141,

142,

143.

e - — T

All door supervisors working outside the premises or whilst engaged in the
dispersal of patrons at the close of business shall wear ‘high visibility
clothing’.

The premises licence holder shall sign up to the ‘Safe and Sound’ approved
charter.

The premises licence holder shall implement a written queue management
policy. All queuing outside the premises shall be managed in such a way that
prevents noisy or rowdy behaviour and therefore minimises disturbance or
nuisance to neighbours. The policy shall be approved in writing by the
Licensing Authority.

The premises licence holder shall implement a written dispersal policy to move
customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity in such a way as to
cause minimum disturbance or nuisance to neighbours both residential and
business and to make the minimum impact upon the neighbourhood in relation
to potential nuisance, antisocial behaviour, crime and disorder. The policy
shall be approved in writing by the Licensing Authority.

The licence will not come into force until the Fire Authority are satisfied with
the fire safety measures that have heen provided in the premises and an
agreed maximum capacity limit has been stated.

Page 54



Full premises plans are held by the Licensing Authority of the London Borough of
Havering. The plans reproduced below are not to scale:

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer
Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070



v Havering

amii: LONDON BOROUG H

PartB

Premises licence summary

Premises licence number 009762_

Premises details

Vertigo Lounge
17-19 Station Lane Hornchurch RM12 6JL

Recorded music, supply of alcohol

Recorded music
Sunday to Thursday — 10:00 to 23:00
Friday & Saturday —10:00 to 00:00

Supply of alcohol
Sunday to Thursday — 12:00 to 23:00
Friday & Saturday — 12:00 to 00:00

The opening hours of the premises

Sunday to Thursday — 10:00 to 23:30
Friday & Saturday — 10:00 to 00:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies

On and off supplies

Thornbury Solutions Ltd
14-18 Forest Road Loughton 1G10 1DX

Paul Jones, Licensing Officer

Misc. Act./009762/PJJ04070

Page 56



m

Registered number of holder

7898870

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for tﬁa—;upply of

alcohol

Mr Steven James Stallion

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted 6FFfb-ﬁiT)itd

Restricted

Page 57



Page 58



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 3 - Map of Local Area

Page 59



cheyer 80210 (ISL HONOHOE NOONOT MMikie
‘piosWIO i
esiomioings  DULIONBH &%

Buusaey jo ybnoiog uopuo

1Z£¥20001 Aomng soueuplQ ZL0z siybu aseqgejep pue ybuidodo umoid @

wos oy 0¢ 0z Ob O 0SzLiL Z102/€0/20 1eq

o|eag vy © °|eds MS/8YSDL @ousisjey depn abuno- obilapn

f,,__
LTS

A .M.L\v_%m /

[[~4T
-__ _ .




Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 4 - Representations from
Responsible Authorities

Page 61



Page 62



Fire Safety Regulation: North East Avea 2
169 Union Strect London SE1 OLL

T 020 8655 1200 x52182

F 020 8536 5968

Minicom 020 7960 8629
www.london-fire.gov.uk

Mullis & Peake LLP Alfhnd?tn Fire atr;ld ll*lme;ger;g.y P:;?nir;g
uthori runs the L.ondan I'ire brigade
8-10 Eastern Road 4 ¢

Romford ' Date 14 Februury 2012
Essex Our Rel' 15-0106348

RM1 3PJ

Dear Sir/Madam
LICENSING ACT 20038
Premises: Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station lane, Hornchurch, Essex, RM12 6JL.

With reference to the application dated 19.1.12 as shown on plan, the application has been
examined and the Fire Authority will make a representation to the Licensing Authority.

The items that are of concern to this authority are detailed on the attached schedule.

The representation may be withdrawn if all of the matters detailed in the attached schedule are
addressed to the satisfaction of the Authority. The Authority must be advised of the completion of
the work at least 5 working days before the committee hearing date, so that an inspection can be
arranged.

This letter is without prejudice to the powers of the Licensing Authority and to any requirements or
recommendations that may be made by enforcing authorities under other legislation. It is also
without prejudice to any requirements or recommendations that may be made by this Authority
under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 or the Petroleum (Consolidation) Act 1928..
All alterations should comply with the appropriate provisions of the current Building Regulations.

Any queries regarding this letter should be addressed to the person named below. If you are
dissatisfied in any way with the response given, please ask to speak to the Team Leader quoting our

reference.

Yours faithfully,

for Assistant Commissioner (Fire Safety Regulation)
Fire and Community Safety Dircctorate
firesafetyregulation NE@london-fire.gov.uk

Encl: FS_GN_71

Reply to 13 Fallam

FS_C08_04 (Rev 8, 04/02/2009) Papégfé 63



P OTIL I T Y
£ l;x!i;é}i

Qur Ref 15010036 Your Ref.

SCHEDULE Sheet 1 of 1

Schedule referred to in the letter reference 16-010638 under the Licensing Act 2008, issued by the London Fire and
Emergency Planning Authority on 14.2.12.

Where appropriate, a plan may form part of this Schedule to illustrate the steps which, in the opinion of the fire
authority, need to be taken in order to promote the public safety objective.

NOTE : Notwithstanding any consultation undertaken by the fire authority, before you make any alterations
to the workplace, you must apply for local authority building control department approval (and/or the
approval of any other bodies having a statutory interest in the premises) if their permission is required for
those alterations to be made.

Licensing
Objective not || Location and detail of matters
adequatsly yhich are cor.1s1dered tout Steps considered necessary to promote the public
addressed people at risk in the event of a : : . 2
safety licensing objective
fire emergency
Public Safety || The application involves an Provide a fire risk assessment which justifies why the
increase in the occupancy increase in numbers is deemed acceptable, The
capacity to a total of 300 assessment is to indicate the maximum capacity for each
persons. This increase in floor of the premises.
numbers has not been justified
in a risk assessment.

Data Protection Act 1998: The information you have given on this form will be processed by London Fire Emergency
Planning Authority for the purpose of fire and emergency planning and control, We will keep your details secure and
will not disclose them to other organisations or third parties (except contractors or suppliers working on our behalf)
without your permission unless we are legally required to do so.

For more information about how we use your personal information, see our notification entry (27122455)
www.informationconunissioner.gov.uk or visit: www.london-fire.gov.uk

~ Page 64 - S

l?b:_(:_oe_;_u-rb (Ru\:T w)tm/o.ﬁ)



v Havering

duis LONDON BOROUGH

memo

From: From: Marc Gasson-Noise Specialist

To: Paul Jones-Licensing Officer.

Public Protection
Mercury House, Mercury Gardens
Romford RM1 3SL

Please call: Marc Gasson
Telephone: 01708 432749
Fax: 01708 432554
email: marc.gasson@havering.gov.uk

Textphone ®: 01708 433175

My Reference : MDG/076327

Your Reference :

Date: 5 March 2012

Licensing Act 2003-Application to Vary Premises Licence
Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station Lane, Hornchurch, Essex.

| refer to the above application and would object to it being granted unless the following

points were addressed:-

1. That all regulated entertainment detailed in the application be restricted to taking

place indoors.

2. No regulated entertainment apart from Recorded music shall take place on the

second floor of the premises.

| trust this clarifies my position

Marc Gasson
Noise Specialist.

Page 65



Page 66



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 5 Representations

Page 67



Page 68



Miss Sarah Lazell and Mr Bradley Rust
Flat 6, 13-15 Station Lane

Hornchurch

RM12 6JL

Your ref. PJJ/011294
16 February 2012

For the attention of Paul Jones
London Borough of Havering
Mercury House

Mercury Gardens

Romford

RM1 3SL

Dear Sir

We are writing to object to the application to vary the premises licence number 009762 dated 6 February 2012 on
the basis that we are an interested party to this application.

Interested party

We are an interested party because we currently reside at 13-15 Station Lane In the flats above the restaurant
Due Fratelll. Our flat is number 6 and it Is located on the third floor of the building. There is a window an our
property which directly overlooks the glass roof of Vertigo Lounge (the Premises). Our balcony also faces
Station Lane and Is located adjacent to the terrace of the Premises. Our bedroom window, which is located at the
rear of our property, directly overlooks the flat roof area at the rear of the Premises.

Also, In order to access our property we have to walk past the main entrance to the bar, This is the same access
that all the residents of the other six flats use.

Current use

When the Premises were being designed, they were designed specifically for an older market. Darren Eva, one
of the co-founders Is quoted as saying, "The intention is to have a high quality, sophisticated venue for over 25s...
Our intention is not to rack them and stack them but to provide a comfortable environment, with good, clear music
where you can have a conversation”. Currently, the bar operates as a lounge bar and restaurant where the only
music they play is recorded background music.

Since moving into our flat in August 2011 we have noticed that its cllentele have been calm and quiet and, as
such, the nuisance levels from noise from the bar, nuisance from people coming and going to the bar have been
kept to a minimum, This is presumably the basis on which they were granted the licence.

However, even at these levels, if we have our windows or balcony doors open, we can hear music and
conversation which does Interfere with our sleep. Also, If our bedroom window Is open, we can hear the
conversations of staff who congregate on the flat roof area during their breaks and after the bar is closed. Even
now, the staff at the Premises use the flat roof for smoking and taking breaks and, in particular, at the end of the
evening after the bar is closed. Even with the window closed, they are really loud. We have asked them to tone
down the noise but it has had no effect. Also, if staff are smoking there it comes through our window should we
leave it open.

On Wednesday, 1 February 2012, the bar had a live DJ between approximately 7pm and 11pm and you could
hear everything, including when the DJ spoke and the music he played. It was necessary to close our windows
and shut the door to our lounge in order to reduce the level of noise. However, it could still be heard from our
bedroom., We are aware that other residents in the building were also disturbed by the noise on this particular
evening.

Therefore, the current use of the Premises is already a nuisance.

We also understand that the Applicant was granted the licence on the condition that soundproofing Insulation was
Installed between the adjoining walls of the Premises and the flats. We do not believe that this has been done.

Page 69



General objections

We understand that this is an application to extend the licence such that on Fridays and Saturdays it is open until
1.30 am and that they be permitted to have some regulated entertalnment such as films, live music, recorded
music, dance and anything simllar.

We have not seen any of the current conditions and cannot make any direct comment on those conditions that
they wish to vary on the grounds that they are unworkable or conflict with other conditions.

Our objections are on the grounds of public nuisance against thls licence being granted,

The proposed changes will fundamentally change the nature of the Premises from a lounge bar to a more
themed bar with the Introduction of live music and that will attract a different type of clientele and a greater
number of clientele.

As explained above, this will increase the amount of visitors to the Premises, increase the noise output from the
Premises and increase the risk of there being public disorder over a longer period as both the nature of the
clientele change and the hours change. If it proposes to provide live music then there is an increased chance of
people coming from other areas given the proximity of the train station and bus routes.

There is a Hogshead located very close to the Premises where the clisntele are able to drink cheaply earlier in
the evening and will then go to the bar afterwards, especially with the later licensing. This will mean that between
certain hours there is the potential for there to be a high number of inebriated people attempting to enter the
Premises. This would be the same area where we access our property.

Specific objectlons

Change to the layout - It is unclear from the licence application exactly how the Applicant plans to vary the layout.
If the Applicant is applying to use the flat roof area at the back of the second floor of the Premises as another
area for paying customers, we would strongly object. In total, seven windows from four different fiats look directly
onto that area. Three windows are bedroom windows and flat number 7 has four separate windows. These
windows are opened on a regular basis and especially during the summer months. If the area is to be used, it
would be possible to reach right in through any open window, in particular to flat number 7.

New Year's Eve variation - We object to the hours being varied so that the Premises can remain open all the way
through New Year's Eve and until midday of New Year's Day. This simply will result in an enormous amount of
people coming and going at all hours in different states of drunkenness until the following morning. We do not
think there is any need for the Premises to remain open right the way through the night. Also we specifically
object to alcohol being served through the night (see category M) as this will only increase the nuisance levels
and the risk of public disorder at all times through the night.

Public nuisance - The Applicant seeks to Increase the numbers to 260. An increase of people will undoubtedly
increase the noise levels and potential disruption outside. The application makes no reference to the Increased
number of people and the consequences of:

e where the smoking facilities will be;
how the waste from smokers will be dealt with;
how the waste from these additional numbers will be dealt with;
whether anything is planned-to ensure that visitors to the bar do not block access; and
what Is being done to ensure that when they leave they do not congregate near the bar and thereby
block access.

Films — We object to the playing of films outdoors. We assume that this licence means that it will be permitted to
have TV screens outside and which will be permanently left on. As noted, our windows and balcony overiook the
Premises and having external films will directly affect us and add to the noise levels and, depending on the
location of the screens in relation to our windows, add to the light nulsance factor, We also object to them being
able to play films at the enhanced hours as set out in the application.

Dance - Simllarly we object to there being dancing outdoors. Dancing should be kept Inslde the bar and not
permitted outslde the Premises.

Cateqories H and K (Anything of a similar nature) — The Applicant has not provided any further details as to what
they envisage and this Is concerning, especlally as they intend to provide it both indoors and outdoors, We
specifically reserve the right to make any comment or objections once further Information is provided.

Making musle — Live music can be very loud in both general noise levels as well as with the use of bass and the
resonancelvibrations. The Applicant wants there to be live music both indoors and outdoors. We object on the
grounds that this is a significant noise nuisance. In addition, depending on the act itself, it has the potential to

Page 70



attract greater numbers than elther the current number of people or even the Increased number that they have
applied for, We also object to them belng able to play music at the enhanced hours as set out in the application,

Other residents

As at the date of this letter, we have not been able to contact all of the other residents of 13-15 Station Lane but
those who we have been able to contact are in agreement and have signed this letter below. As such, please
consider this letter as from those residents,

Hearing

We would like to attend the actual hearing and look forward to receiving notification of that date.

We understand that, as a business, there will sometimes need to be changes. As such, we do not want to be
unreasonable. However, the combination of all of the proposed changes would lead to an increase in serious

public nuisance. In order to assist you in dealing with the objections, we would like to make it clear that our main
obJections are;

. changes to the layout so as to use the flat roof area as a public area;
. playing of live music, especlally when played on week day evenings;
. New Year's Eve variation.

We hope that you give special attention to these concerns. Howaver, we urge you to consider all our objections
set out in this letter in light of the close proximity of the flats to the bar and the potentially great impact that the
combined changes could have on our day-to-day lives.

Should you have any queries regarding our concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Yours sincerely

gouc\fk&'ov d&hk e s !ﬁc//é%xm

Sarah Lazell Heather Shallow
Flat 6 Flat 7

A J) A '5 %
(w\.‘/ ...................... e e es S
Bradley Rust Barney Barc
Flat 6 Flat 7

Flat 1

Michael Charalambous
Flat 4

Page 71



H1 Feb, 2000 "5:2% ness & colemen Wi 9758

170-180 HIGH STREEYT

PETER JONES & ASSOC, HOUNCIURCH
ESSEX. 1M12 6JP

P A Jones MSc. C Eng

Property & Planning Consultants N P Jones MDA B Sc. MRICS
I M Garcia B Sc. B Aich. RIBA

Public Protection Manager, . ¢-mail: P.jones@mosco.couk
Housing & Public Protection,

London Borough of Havering Mobile: 0752 844 3541
Mercury House,Mercury Gardens YourRel:  PIJO11294

Romlord Essex, RM1 3SL
pew s, LY AN A8 Kz 554 Date:

Licensing Act 2003-Prmises Licence Variation Application
Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station Lane, Hornchurch. RM12 6JL

15" Febiary 2012

We act as managing agenis for Impatien Properties Ltd., the owner of the building ar 13-15
Station Lane which is adjacent' to the above property and contains seven flats in the upper
tlhwee storeys of the building In this instance, we have also been asked by the tenants of
flats No.d 1,3 and 5 to act as their representative.

Smnce the above bar premises commenced trading we have received a numiber of
complaints from the tenants occupying flats in the block. The complainfs me delailed below
and mainly relate to noise emanating from the premises and the air conditioning equipment
located on the flat roof at the rear of the premises at second floor level as well the
unauthorised uvse of the same flat roof as a staff amenity and storage area Loth duong
and after licensing hours.

Reprettably the effectiveness of the sound insulation and the other measuctes used to control
the level of sound from music being played in the premises is notas good as the
undertaking made when the original application was made, As a result the fenants m the
four flats immediately adjacent to licensed premised are regularly disturbed by the sound of
music emanaling from the licensed premises. One couple who had happily occupied their flat
for nearly two years surrendered occupancy of the flat two months before the end of thewr
lenaucy, at a personal cost of some £2000 because they had carly statt jobs awnd found that
once the bar opened the level of noise and other disturbance mentioned later, prevented
them from sleeping when they went to bed in the evening The tenants have reported that
u the run up to Christmas Time and sometimes at the weekend the music contimes well
after (he specified closing time of 23.00 hrs. and is oflen played louder than normal at this
time. On one particular night before Christmas, Mr Jones was compelled, {ollowing several
complaints from tenants, to contact My Damren Bva by telephone shoiily before midnight
and bring to his attention the fact that music was slill be played loudly in the bar. Despite
the phone call the disturbance continued for some time after it was reported. According to
statements from the tenaats, the playing of loud music after closing hours is is by no
means an unusual occurrence, We also understand from recent reports from the tcnants that
the disturbance from noise has further increased since the praclice of employing a DJ

commenced at the premises.

Page 72



I7Feb, 2002 °6:29 . noss & coleman e, 9754 F

~D
..

lt is now very evident after only a few months of the bar being open, that despitc the
prior assurance given by the proprietors and conditions imposed by the Local Authority at
the time of granting the first licence, the operation at three levels of the licensed bar
premises regularly causes substantial nuisance and disturbance resulting in loss of amenity
to the occupiers of the adjacent residential premises by virtue of the noise cmanaling from
the premises late in the evening when the adjacent occupiers are preparing or (rying to go
o sleep. It is now very apparent that the sound proofing, as installed is less cffective than
was anticipated when the Licence was granted and/or the music is being playcd at higher
levels of volume than was specified!

It is also now obvious that the decision to allow and/or locate a high volume vertical
drinking establishment operating at multi levels-and immediately adjacent to the only of
purpose built flats block of flats in the town centre was a serious error of judgement by
all concemed. Fortunately, both the Licensing and Planning Authorities clearly recogaised,
the risk posed by the proposed bar, to the quality of amenity enjoyed by the adjacent
residential occupiers and acted responsibly to protect the residents, as far as was possible,
by imposing from the outset strict conditions to the Licence. The main reason that both
authorities, when granting permission for the bar, attached severe resfrictions to the the
howrs of opening of the licensed premiscs, such that the bar was requited fo close by
23.00 hus. every day of the year without exception was to ensure that the adjacent occupiers
did not suffer undue nuisance or distwbance from the bars activities. Numerous other
restrictions were also specified which served for the same good reasons to limit both the
range and timing of ancillary activities especially in the open terrace area at 2™ floor level.

The promoters of the bar were aware of the many and onerous resirictions unposed by
both authorities before they made their investment and commenced work on fitling out the
bar. It is therefore not acceptable for them to now attemplto vary those restrictions,
particularly as the sound prooflng and other intended controls which have been installed
have proved less than adequate. It is to be hoped that the current application is not the
beginning of a stream of applications fo vary the original Licence, each one designed to
erode away one or more of the restrictions which were all reasonably and properly imposed
at the outset, in order to protect the privacy and amenities of the numerous adjacent and
nearby residential occupiers. The importance of these protective measures remain as valid
today as they did when the Licence was originally granted and there are no ncw factors
which would justify relaxation of any of the condition attached to the original Licence.

We therefore ask the Licensing Authority not to permit any variation of the current licence
which will [urther compromise either the privacy or amenity of the adjacent and nearby
occupiers, this request applies especially to the cument finishing time of 23.00tuws for all
aclivities. Our clients are also paiticu)arly concemed fo ensure that there be no variation in
the restriction on the playing of music, films. TV or dancing outside op the rvof terrace at
any time of the day and that no additional activity inside the premises, not all ready
covered by the original licence, be permitted,, This request 13 made on the grounds that the
adjacent occupiers have already suffered a”substantial loss of amenity as a rosull of the
current activities of the bar and any further increase in activity, particularly lale al night,
would only serve to aggravate the loss already expesienced and would be contiary to the
stated policies of both the Licensing and Planning Authorities. » '

Whilst writing we need to bring to the attention of the Licensing Authority, three other
scrious causes of nuisance, all of which relate to the unauthorised use of the low level
roof at the rear of the premises. Access to this flat roof area is conveniently obtained
through an emergency door at the rear of the second floor of the licensed premises.

Page 73



\.I
X
™~
Axd

7 °5:%9 moss & coleman : Mo,

The first cause of nwmsance is constant and relates to the noise of the air conditioning plant
which is located on the roof and is andible from flats No, 2,4, 6 and 7, particular lale at
night when the tenanls are trying to sleep, I understand from my enquiries thal the
equipment is in fact supposed to be switched off when the premises is closed, but often
case it is not, and can be a source of disturbance and/or nuisance all night long, to those
sleeping in the four bedrooms adjacent to the roof This nuisance is dantagingto the
ameunity of the neighbouring occupiers and the resulting disturbed sleep may in the jong
term cause health problems.

The sccond cause of nuisance to the occupants of the flats arises from the unauthorised
use of the flat roof as a sfaff smoking and amenity area. In the warmer weather last year
it was the habit of staff and others to spend their breaks either sitting at a conveniently
placed table on the roof or statding around chatting and smoking. Whilst this was no doubt
very pleasant for the staff it was not good for the tenants of the four flats which have
bedroom and other windows facing on to the roof. Even now in the winter we understand
it is not unusual, often late in the evening when the adjacent occupiers have refired to. bed,
for people from the barto stand outside close to bedroom windows whilst they chat, smoke
a cigaretie and/or cool off! If this was not enough, an added cause of nuisance is that
whilsl people are on the roof and at other times, probably to increase ventilation, the
emergency door giving access to the roof is left open, which makes tlie sound of the
music emanating from the premises appear even louder, This nuisance is contrary to the
privacy and damaging to the amenity of the adjacent occupiers.

The third cause of nuisance is the practice of the using the flat roof to store surplus
outdoor furniture, plant pots, ladders and the like. This practices mar the visual amenity of
the occupiers of the neighbouring flats.

It is hoped that the by bringing these matters up at this.time the Licensing Authority will
be in a position o make it clear that the current Licence does not permit the use of the
roof as an amenity and storapge area and can take steps to ensure thar the air conditioning
is either silenced and/or the running times of the equipment is restricted at night.
This letter as previously stated is written on behalf of Impatien Properties Ltd ., the
freeholder of the block of flats, and also the tenants of Flats No.d 1, 3 and 5.1t is our
understanding that the tenants of flats No.d 4,6 and 7 are submitting their own combined

represenfation

Flat No 2 15 currently leased on a short hold basis to the proprietors of the bar and
(hevefore the current occupier, who is employed by the bar, may not be expecled to raise
any objections to the application. However, this is not a long term arrangement, and it 1s
reasonable to suppose that at some stage in the future the flat will be occupied by an
independent tenant who will then doubtless have the same complaints and concerns as the
occupiers of flats No.d 4,6 and 7, as this flat, in common with those mentioned, 1s also
located 1mmediately adjacent to, the subject building and has a bedroom facing on to the
lat ool area veferred to above,

Yours faithfylly,

e —

PETER JONES.

Page 74



170-180 HIGH. STRI

PETER JONES HORNCHUR
ESSEX. RMI2 (

Property & Planning Consultants

P A Jones M SeC Iing

NP Jones MBA BSe MRIC
Public Protection Manager A M Garcia BSe (Are) B.Ar.
Housing & Public Protection
London Borough of Havering

Mereury House TELEPHONE :  (01708) 446

Mercury Gardens DX: 51003 HORD

Romford. Essex FAX : (01708) 4703

RMI 3SL e-mail: pjones@mor
P —— Our Ref:: PIIMP

! e | \‘\ l}- I{Ik‘ ” “\';y 1;’: H'_)] ‘\ Your Rel: IJJ‘”‘O] 1294

Date: 5™ Marcl

Dear Sirs,

Licensing Act 2003 — Premises Variation Application
Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station Lane Hornchurch, RM12 6JL

Further to the e-mail dated 20", February 2012 we are pleased enclose as
requested, letters signed by the tenants of Flats No.3 & 5. in support of ou
letter dated 15", Feb. 2012,

As you are aware the tenant of Flat No.l has already submitted a representd

Yours sincerely
’}

P

PETER JONES

ENC.

Page 75



Flat No 5 .
13-15 Station Lane
Hornchurch RM12 6JL

Public Protection Manager,
Housing & Public Protection,
London Borough of Havering
Mercury House,Mercury Gardens
Romford. Essex. RM1 3SL

Date: 5™ March 2012
Dear Sir,

Licensing Act 2003-Premises Licence Variation Application
Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station Lane, Hornchurch. RM12 6JL

| write to confirm my knowledge and support for the letter from Peter Jones & Assoc.
dated 15", Feb.2012 objecting to proposed changes to the Licence at the above premises.

L)
e
.f

Yours faithfully,

Page 76



Flat No 6"

13-15 Station Lane
Hornchurch RM 12 6JL

Public Protection Manager,
Housing & Public Protection,
LLondon Borough of Havering
Mercury House,Mercury Gardens
Romford. Essex. RM1 3SL

Date: 5"'. March 2012
Dear Sir,

Licensing Act 2003-Premises Licence Variation Application
Vertigo Lounge, 17-19 Station Lane, Horuc_hurch. RM12 6JL

| write to confirm my knowledge and support for the letter from Peter Jones & Assoc.
dated 135" Feb.2012 objecting to proposed changes to the Licence at the above premises.

Yours [faithfully,

. . (.

= e Foudofo—
Tenant Flat No.
e

o=

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



	Agenda
	4 REPORT OF THE CLERK
	5 REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER

